
MAYOR  CITY MANAGER 

Shirley Sessions Dr. Shawn Gillen 

 
CITY COUNCIL CLERK OF COUNCIL  
Barry Brown, Mayor Pro Tem Jan LeViner 

Brian West  

Jay Burke CITY ATTORNEY 
Nancy DeVetter Edward M. Hughes 

Spec Hosti 
Monty Parks  

 CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

 

A G E N D A  
REGULAR MEETING OF TYBEE ISLAND CITY COUNCIL 

April 13, 2023 at 6:30 PM 
Please silence all cell phones during Council Meetings 

 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Invocation:  Jan LeViner, Clerk 
     Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Announcements 
 
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda Consideration of the approval of the minutes of the 
meetings of the Tybee island City Council 

1. Minutes, March 23, 2023 
 
Citizens to be Heard:  Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Maximum allowable times of 5 
minutes. 

2. Pat Leiby and Julia Pearce, Tybee MLK's Pilgrimage to Ghana connecting the Door of No 
Return to Tybee's Lazaretto   

 
If there is anyone wishing to speak to anything on the agenda other than the Public Hearings, 
please come forward.  Please limit your comments to 3-5 minutes. 
 
Consideration of Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
Public Hearings 

3. Applicant is requesting special review of proposed retaining wall at landward toe of dune 
4. Applicant requests permission to have a second temporary dwelling on the 

property until home is elevated. Applicant is part of 2nd batch of the HMGP grant. 
5. Special Review, Sec 3-100, Beach, dune or vegetation disturbance/crossover 

maintenance and construction.  Jason Bell petitioner 
6. First Reading, 2023-05, Sec 5-050 (C):  Expanded Notification to Owners or Occupants 
7. First Reading 2023-06:  Sec 5-050, Single Family to Multifamily Rezoning 
8. First Reading 2023-07:  Sec 5-060 Appeal of Zoning Decision 
9. First Reading 2023-08 Sec 5-060 Required Number of Public Hearings 

- Page 1 -



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

10. First Reading 2023-09 Sec 3-090 To allow an Elevator to Encroach into the Side or Rear 
Setback 

11. First Reading 2023-10 Sec 2-010 Change of Setback Definition to Allow for Elevators 
12. First Reading 2023-11 Sec _____ To allow for STR Permits in the R-1, R-1B and R-2 

Districts for Historic Homes that have been moved or Historic Restorations 
13. First Reading 2023-12 Sec 3-_____ To allow for an Exception to the STR Abandonment 

Clause in Cases of Certain Calamities 
14. Appendices - Staff Reports  and Planning Commission votes for Public Hearings 

 
Consideration of Local Requests & Applications – Funding, Special Events, Alcohol License 

15. Agenda Request: Elisurf's Coffee & Bagel Bar dba The Surfing Goat:  
Add liquor by the drink to existing alcohol license: Beer/Wine/Sunday Sales License  
15B Tybrisa St 

 
Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures 

16. Visit Tybee Info Hut Agreement 
17. Approve contract proposal for Audit Services.  Management recommends Clifton Larson 

Allen LLP to perform FY23 Audit of City Financial Statements 
18. Sgt Sims, out of state travel to complete his Drug Recognition Expert certification. He 

will need to travel to Jacksonville, Fl on April 10 and return on April 16. Hotels expenses 
for travel are covered for this trip through the certification program. Sgt. Sims will need 
to travel in his TIPD patrol car requiring gas and per diem for meals. He was originally 
scheduled to attend this class in November 2023, but a spot opened this month. 

 
Consideration of Ordinances, Resolutions 

19. Second Reading:  2023-20, Sec 46-34, Discrimination and Harassment Prevention 
 
Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 
 
Executive Session 
     Discuss litigation, personnel and real estate  
 
Possible vote on litigation, personnel and real estate discussed in executive session 
Adjournment 
Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are 
required to contact Jan LeViner at 912.472.5080 promptly to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations 
for those persons.   
 
*PLEASE NOTE:  Citizens wishing to speak on items listed on the agenda, other than public hearings, 
should do so during the citizens to be heard section.  Citizens wishing to place items on the council 

meeting agenda must submit an agenda request form to the City Clerk’s office by Thursday at 5:00PM 
prior to the next scheduled meeting.  Agenda request forms are available outside the Clerk’s office at City 

Hall and at www.cityoftybee.org. 
 

 

 

THE VISION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

- Page 2 -

http://www.cityoftybee.org/


 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

“is to make Tybee Island the premier beach community in which to live, work, and play.” 
 

 

 

THE MISSION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

“is to provide a safe, secure and sustainable environment by delivering superior services through responsible 
planning, preservation of our natural and historic resources, and partnership with our community to ensure 
economic opportunity, a vibrant quality of life, and a thriving future.” 

 

 

- Page 3 -



File Attachments for Item:

1. Minutes, March 23, 2023

- Page 4 -Item #1.



- Page 5 -Item #1.



- Page 6 -Item #1.



City Council Minutes, March 23, 2023 
 
 
Mayor Sessions called the meeting to order at 6:30PM, March 23, 2023.  Those in 
attendance were Brian West, Monty Parks, Nancy DeVetter, Barry Brown, Jay Burke and 
Spec Hosti.  Also attending were Dr. Shawn Gillen, City Manager; Michelle Owens, 
Assistant City Manager; Bubba Hughes, City Attorney; George Shaw, Planning and Zoning 
and Jan LeViner, Clerk of Council.   
 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Invocation:  Jan LeViner, Clerk 
     Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Sessions added the following to the Consent Agenda: 

 Minutes, City Council Meeting, March 9, 2023 
 Agenda Request: Frozen Daiquiri LLC dba The Daiquiri Bar: Alcohol and Entertainment  
 License-Beer/Wine/Liquor - No Sunday Sales, 1504 Butler Ave, piped in/recorded Music 

only-no live music 
 Agenda Request: Fin's Corner Pizza-Entertainment License, 1605 Inlet Ave 

 Approval for travel to Association of State Floodplain Managers Conference, Out of state 
travel to the ASFPM annual conference in Raleigh, NC. May 7-11, 2023 for George 
Shaw. Budget 52-3500 

 RFP 2023-771 Disaster Debris Removal.  Discussion: Contract to be signed by the Mayor 
once legal team approves it. 

 Budget Amendment - Legal Fees 
 Consider approval to request GMEBS to draft the necessary documents for 

the recommended changes to the employee pension plan. 

 TIMSC Portable Restroom - Agreement with Royal Restrooms 
 Public Works and Georgia Power to replace 32 streetlights along Tybrisa and Strand 

Avenue for $350,000. 
 
Recognitions and Proclamations 
Jaime Spear and Jen Amerell approached Mayor and Council to recognize Danielle Bucher 
as Employee of the Year.  Ms. Amerell commended Ms. Bucher as she continues to go beyond 
and is the first one to assist other staff members.  Ms. Bucher is always professional and 
respective and is a valuable asset to the City.    Mayor Sessions also commended Ms. Bucher for 
her dedication to the Finance Department and the City.   
Nidhi Patel, Miss Tybee Island, approached Mayor and Council.  Mayor Sessions introduced 
Ms. Patel and asked her to explain how she got to the position.  Ms. Patel thanked Mayor Sessions 
for the opportunity to speak and share her platform with the community.  She continued, her 
Social Impact Initiative is “Your Mental Health Matters – You Matter”.  Ms. Patel asked if anyone 
would like more information to please reach out, as she would love to collaborate with the City.  
Mayor Sessions then presented a Certificate of Appreciation and wished her good luck in her 
journey to the Miss Georgia competition and hopefully, Miss America competition. 
 

 

- Page 7 -Item #1.



Reports of Staff, Boards, Standing Committees and/or Invited Guest.  Limit 
reports to 10 minutes. 
Ben McKay, Assistant Director, Center for Business Analytics and Economics 
Research, Georgia Southern University approached Mayor and Council to give a 
Presentation of the Tourism Economic Impact Study.  Mr. McKay introduced Chelsea 
Rimmers who headed the project.  Ms. Rimmers then gave an update on the data reported in 
the 2015 Tybee Island Tourism Study and to estimate the economic and fiscal impact on Tybee 
Island visitors.  She then showed a presentation on the visitors to the Island and their impact and 
then a comparison of 2015 and 2023 Reports. Mr. McKay approached Mayor and Council to 
discuss the comparisons between Tybee Island and other cities.  Mayor Sessions thanked Mr. 
McKay and Ms. Rimmers for their presentation. 

Julie Livingston approached Mayor and Council to speak to Golf Cart Safety.  Ms. 
Livingston went over several Golf Carty Safety Issues (attached).  She asked that the City 
meet with all the golf cart rental companies to discuss uniform safety rules.  Mayor 
Sessions thanked Ms. Livingston for her concerns and comments.  She asked Dr. Gillen 
to set up a Task Force to look into enforcement.  Dr. Gillen confirmed. 
 
Monty Parks made a motion to approve the consent agenda.  Barry Brown seconded.  
Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0.   
 
Consideration of Ordinances and Resolutions 
First Reading, 2023-20, Sec 46-34, Discrimination and Harassment Prevention.  Mr. 
Hughes stated the proposed ordinance is an improvement on the existing policy.  This also 
clarifies and addresses harassment in the work place with discrimination and procedures.  The 
Human Resources staff developed these rules which are becoming the ordinance and deal with 
all types of harassments resulting in decimation as to beyond sexual harassment.  Mr. Hughes 
continued there are better definitions of the categories and protection for the employees.  Mayor 
Sessions thanked the Human Resources Department for taking recognizing the need to update 
the ordinance.  Dr. Gillen also thanked Ms. Spear, Human Resources Director.  Monty Parks 
made a motion to approve.  Brian West seconded.  Voting in favor were Brian West, Monty 
Parks, Nancy DeVetter, Jay Burke and Spec Hosti.  Voting against was Barry Brown.  Motion to 
approve, 5-1. 

 
Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 
Shawn Gillen gave an update on the Action Item List.  
 
Monty Parks made a motion to adjourn to executive session to discuss litigation, and 
real estate. Brian West seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Monty Parks made a motion to return to regular session.  Spec Hosti seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Spec Hosti made a motion to adjourn.  Monty Parks seconded.  Vote was unanimous 
to approve, 6-0. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:30PM 
 

- Page 8 -Item #1.



 

 
 
_________________________ 
Janet LeViner, MMC 
Clerk of Council 

- Page 9 -Item #1.



File Attachments for Item:

2. Pat Leiby and Julia Pearce, Tybee MLK's Pilgrimage to Ghana connecting the Door of No 

Return to Tybee's Lazaretto  

- Page 10 -Item #2.



- Page 11 -Item #2.



File Attachments for Item:

3. Applicant is requesting special review of proposed retaining wall at landward toe of dune

- Page 12 -Item #3.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Applicant is requesting special review of proposed retaining wall at landward toe of
dune.

Vote on hearing

SPECIAL REVIEW-3 - 8TH PLACE.pdf

- Page 13 -Item #3.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1870931/SPECIAL_REVIEW-3_-_8TH_PLACE.pdf


- Page 14 -Item #3.



- Page 15 -Item #3.



- Page 16 -Item #3.



- Page 17 -Item #3.



- Page 18 -Item #3.



- Page 19 -Item #3.



- Page 20 -Item #3.



- Page 21 -Item #3.



- Page 22 -Item #3.



- Page 23 -Item #3.



- Page 24 -Item #3.



- Page 25 -Item #3.



- Page 26 -Item #3.



- Page 27 -Item #3.



- Page 28 -Item #3.



- Page 29 -Item #3.



File Attachments for Item:

4. Applicant requests permission to have a second temporary dwelling on theproperty until 

home is elevated. Applicant is part of 2nd batch of the HMGP grant.

- Page 30 -Item #4.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Applicant requests permission to have a second temporary dwelling on the
property until home is elevated.  Applicant is part of 2nd batch of the HMGP grant.

Vote on hearing

VARIANCE-1218 US HWY 80.pdf

- Page 31 -Item #4.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1870914/VARIANCE-1218_US_HWY_80.pdf


- Page 32 -Item #4.



- Page 33 -Item #4.



- Page 34 -Item #4.



- Page 35 -Item #4.



- Page 36 -Item #4.



- Page 37 -Item #4.



- Page 38 -Item #4.



- Page 39 -Item #4.



- Page 40 -Item #4.



- Page 41 -Item #4.



- Page 42 -Item #4.



- Page 43 -Item #4.



- Page 44 -Item #4.



- Page 45 -Item #4.



- Page 46 -Item #4.



- Page 47 -Item #4.



File Attachments for Item:

5. Special Review, Sec 3-100, Beach, dune or vegetation disturbance/crossover maintenance 

and construction.  Jason Bell petitioner

- Page 48 -Item #5.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Applicant is requesting special review of proposed retaining wall at landward toe of
dune.

Vote on hearing

SPECIAL REVIEW-3 - 8TH PLACE.pdf

- Page 49 -Item #5.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1870931/SPECIAL_REVIEW-3_-_8TH_PLACE.pdf


- Page 50 -Item #5.



- Page 51 -Item #5.



- Page 52 -Item #5.



- Page 53 -Item #5.



- Page 54 -Item #5.



- Page 55 -Item #5.



- Page 56 -Item #5.



- Page 57 -Item #5.



- Page 58 -Item #5.



- Page 59 -Item #5.



- Page 60 -Item #5.



- Page 61 -Item #5.



- Page 62 -Item #5.



- Page 63 -Item #5.



- Page 64 -Item #5.



- Page 65 -Item #5.



File Attachments for Item:

6. First Reading, 2023-05, Sec 5-050 (C):  Expanded Notification to Owners or Occupants

- Page 66 -Item #6.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-05 

ENTITLED: 

EXPANDED NOTIFICATION OF CERTAIN PROPERTY PETITIONS AND 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, TO AMEND THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 

CODE SECTION 5-050(C) TO EXPAND THE NOTICE APPLICABLE TO 

APPLICATIONS FOR RELIEF UNDER VARIOUS ACTIONS REQUESTED 

REQUIRING PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

(the “City”) is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State 

of Georgia to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and 

welfare of the citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is 

the Mayor and Council thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to adopt ordinances under its police and home 

rule powers; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City wishes to expand the notice applicable to applications for relief under 

various provisions requested which require public hearing so as to provide for notice to owners 

beyond just “adjacent” property owners; and  

  

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby ordained by the governing authority of the City of Tybee 

Island that the Code of Ordinances will be amended as follows: 

 

SECTION 1 

  

Land Development Code, Section 5-050(C) shall hereinafter read as follows: 

 

 Notification to Nearby Property Owners or Occupants.  At least 15 days, but not more than 

45 days, before the scheduled public hearing, the zoning administrator shall notify all neighboring 

property owners or occupants within a 200 foot radius of the location of the property for which the 

relief is requested on applications for rezoning, variance, special review and/or site plan approval.  

Notice, in addition to the date, time and place of the public hearing, shall include the location of 

the property and the relief sought.  Failure of the zoning administrator to send out notices, or the 

failure of the property owners or occupants to receive notification shall not affect the validity of 

any determination of an application, as this procedure exists as a supplement to the legally required 

notification procedures. 

 

SECTION 2 

 

 If any section, clause, sentence or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or 

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way effect the 

validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  It is hereby declared as the intent of the City of 

- Page 67 -Item #6.



 
 

Tybee Island Mayor and Council that this ordinance would have been adopted had such invalid or 

unconstitutional portion not been included herein. 

 

SECTION 3 

 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed.   

 

SECTION 4 
 

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances, City of Tybee 

Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

 

SECTION 5 
  

This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

  

 This Ordinance shall become effective on _____ day of ______________, 2023. 

 

ADOPTED THIS       DAY OF                    , 2023. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

                                                         

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING:   

SECOND READING:   

ENACTED:     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

572.1 Land Development Code – Notice to Property Owners-Occupants 2-22-2023 

- Page 68 -Item #6.



File Attachments for Item:

7. First Reading 2023-06:  Sec 5-050, Single Family to Multifamily Rezoning

- Page 69 -Item #7.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-06 

ENTITLED: 

ZPL – MULTI-FAMILY TO SINGLE FAMILY CLASSIFICATION AND 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE FOR THE CITY 

OF TYBEE ISLAND GEORGIA SO AS TO ADD A SUBSECTION OUTLINING THE 

REQUIREMENTS TO REZONE LAND DESIGNATED SINGLE-FAMILY TO MULTI-

FAMILY AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

  

 

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia 

to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is the Mayor and Council thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to adopt ordinances under its police and 

home rule powers; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the Land Development Code is in need of 

revision and updating so as to establish appeal standards uniform with the changes established by 

House Bill 1405 which amended the Zoning Procedures Law; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ordained by the governing authority of the City of 

Tybee Island as follows: 

 

SECTION I 

 

Section 5-050 of the Land Development Code is hereby amended to add a subsection that shall 

read as follows: 

 

(E) In instances where O.C.G.A. §36-66-4(h)(1) would require that there be additional public 

hearings because of efforts to change land zoned for single or two-family dwellings (R-1, 

R-1-B, R-2 and R-T) to zoning for multi-family dwellings (C-1 or R-T after special 

review), the procedures required by O.C.G.A. §36-66-4(h)(1) apply.  

 

SECTION II 

 

 If any section, clause, sentence or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or 

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way effect the 

validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  It is hereby declared as the intent of the City of 

Tybee Island Mayor and Council that this ordinance would have been adopted had such invalid or 

unconstitutional portion not been included herein. 

- Page 70 -Item #7.



 

 

SECTION III 

 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed. 

 

SECTION IV 

 

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances, City of 

Tybee Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

 

SECTION V 

 

 This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

the code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

 

 This Ordinance shall become effective on _____________ day of _____________, 2023. 

 

 ADOPTED THIS _____ DAY OF ______________, 2023. 

 

 

             

      MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING: ________________ 

SECOND READING:______________ 

ENACTED:______________________ 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

572-1 ZPL – Multi-Family to Single Family Classification 2/9/2023 

- Page 71 -Item #7.



File Attachments for Item:

8. First Reading 2023-07:  Sec 5-060 Appeal of Zoning Decision

- Page 72 -Item #8.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-07 

ENTITLED: 

APPEAL OF ZONING DECISION AND 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE FOR THE CITY 

OF TYBEE ISLAND GEORGIA SO AS TO ADD A SUBSECTION OUTLINING THE 

APPEAL PROCESS FOR ZONING ACTIONS OR SUBDIVISION PROCEDURES AND 

FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

  

 

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is 

authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia to 

adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of the 

citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is 

the Mayor and Council thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to adopt ordinances under its police and home 

rule powers; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the Land Development Code is in need of 

revision and updating so as to establish appeal standards uniform with the changes established by 

House Bill 1405 which amended the Zoning Procedures Law; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ordained by the governing authority of the City of Tybee 

Island as follows: 

 

SECTION I 

 

Section 5-060 of the Land Development Code is hereby amended to add a subsection that shall 

read as follows: 

 

(e) In the event that an applicant is dissatisfied with a zoning decision of the mayor and 

council, the applicant may, within 30 days of the written decision, challenge the decision 

of the mayor and council as required by O.C.G.A. § 36-66-5.1.  Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 

36-66-5.1(c), where an applicant challenges a decision, the Mayor shall serve as the 

designated elected official with the power to approve or issue any form or certificate 

necessary to perfect the applicant’s petition and who shall accept service of such petition 

on behalf of the mayor and council during normal business hours, at the offices of the local 

government.  

 

  

- Page 73 -Item #8.



SECTION II 

 If any section, clause, sentence or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or 

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way effect the 

validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  It is hereby declared as the intent of the City of 

Tybee Island Mayor and Council that this ordinance would have been adopted had such invalid or 

unconstitutional portion not been included herein. 

SECTION III 

 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed. 

 

SECTION IV 

 

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances, City of Tybee 

Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

 

SECTION V 

 

 This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

the code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

 

 

 This Ordinance shall become effective on _____________ day of _____________, 2023. 

 

 ADOPTED THIS _____ DAY OF ______________, 2023. 

 

 

             

      MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING: ________________ 

SECOND READING:______________ 

ENACTED:______________________ 

 

 
572-1 Appeal of Zoning Decision 2-9-2023 

- Page 74 -Item #8.



File Attachments for Item:

9. First Reading 2023-08 Sec 5-060 Required Number of Public Hearings

- Page 75 -Item #9.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-08 

ENTITLED: 

ZPL – PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURES AND 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE FOR THE CITY 

OF TYBEE ISLAND GEORGIA SECTION 5-060, SO AS TO REVISE THE REQUIRED 

NUMBER OF HEARINGS IN ORDER TO OBTAIN A PERMIT IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH THE ZONING PROCEDURES LAW AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

  

 

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia 

to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is the Mayor and Council thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to adopt ordinances under its police and 

home rule powers; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the Land Development Code is in need of 

revision and updating so as to establish standards uniform with the changes established by House 

Bill 1405 which amended the Zoning Procedures Law; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ordained by the governing authority of the City of 

Tybee Island as follows: 

 

SECTION I 

 

The introductory paragraph of Section 5-060 of the Land Development Code is hereby amended 

so that hereafter such paragraph shall read as follows: 

  

Whenever a zoning action or subdivision procedures take place, a hearing must be held before 

the public. Unless otherwise required by law, only one official public hearing is required for text 

amendments, rezonings, special uses, and concurrent variances, or any combination thereof. In 

Tybee Island there are two public hearings held for each zoning action or subdivision procedure; 

one before the planning commission and the other before the mayor and council. The public 

hearing before the mayor and council is by record the official public hearing. The purpose of 

each public hearing is to discuss information pertinent to the particular action or procedure. 

During the hearing the following rules and actions shall be followed: 

 

  

- Page 76 -Item #9.



SECTION II 

 If any section, clause, sentence or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or 

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way effect the 

validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  It is hereby declared as the intent of the City of 

Tybee Island Mayor and Council that this ordinance would have been adopted had such invalid or 

unconstitutional portion not been included herein. 

SECTION III 

 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed. 

 

SECTION IV 

 

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances, City of 

Tybee Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

 

SECTION V 

 

 This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

the code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

 

 

 This Ordinance shall become effective on _____________ day of _____________, 2023. 

 

 ADOPTED THIS _____ DAY OF ______________, 2023. 

 

 

             

      MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING: ________________ 

SECOND READING:______________ 

ENACTED:______________________ 

 

 

 

 

572-1 ZPL – Public Hearing 2/9/2023 

- Page 77 -Item #9.



File Attachments for Item:

10. First Reading 2023-09 Sec 3-090 To allow an Elevator to Encroach into the Side or Rear 

Setback

- Page 78 -Item #10.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-09 

ENTITLED: 

SETBACK DEFINITION 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, TO AMEND THE DEFINITION 

OF “SETBACK” IN ORDER TO EXEMPT FROM SETBACK 

REQUIREMENTS THE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF 

ELEVATORS FOR ACCESS TO PORTIONS OF A RESIDENTIAL 

PROPERTY 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, (the “City”) is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the 

Constitution of the State of Georgia to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and 

improve the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, is the Mayor and Council thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to adopt ordinances under its 

police and home rule powers; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the hardship requirement is not well-suited to the circumstances 

for a variance in instances where hardships may exist to occupants of a residence 

where access is needed but difficult to obtain to higher floors; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in the Land Development Code, Article 2, Definitions, Section 

2-010, the section concerning the definition of “Setback” should be revised to correct 

a typographical error, which has apparently developed over various printings; and 

 

 WHEREAS, an exemption is appropriate to remove elevator and shafts from 

the setback requirements in residential construction upon approval of the building 

official to the extent necessary to accommodate standard elevator construction; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby ordained by the governing authority of the 

City of Tybee Island that the Code of Ordinances will be amended so as revise the 

definition of “Setback” as follows: 

 

 

 

- Page 79 -Item #10.



 

SECTION 1 

 

Land Development Code, Article 2, Definitions, Section 2-010: 

Setback means the minimum horizontal distance between the front, rear, or 

side lot lines and the existing or proposed edges of the structure.  The term “required 

setback” means a line beyond which a building is not permitted to extend under the 

provisions set forth in this Land Development Code establishing minimum depth 

and width of yards.  Eaves not exceeding 24 inches are exempt from setback 

requirements.  Eaves in excess of 24 inches are not exempt from setback 

requirements to the extent they exceed 24 inches.  On existing structures one elevator 

facility and elevator shaft is exempt from side and rear setback requirements upon 

approval of the building official to the extent necessary in order to accommodate the 

installation and maintenance of an elevator. 

 

SECTION 2 

 

 If any section, clause, sentence or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid 

or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in 

no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  It is hereby 

declared as the intent of the City of Tybee Island Mayor and Council that this ordinance 

would have been adopted had such invalid or unconstitutional portion not been 

included herein. 

 

SECTION 3 

 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly 

repealed.   

 

SECTION 4 

 

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the 

provisions of this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code 

of Ordinances, City of Tybee Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may 

be renumbered to accomplish such intention. 

 

SECTION 5 

  

This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council 

pursuant to The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

  

- Page 80 -Item #10.



 
 

 This Ordinance shall become effective on _____ day of ______________, 

2023. 

 
ADOPTED THIS       DAY OF                    , 2023. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

                                                         

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING:   

SECOND READING:   

ENACTED:     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
572-1 Ordinances 2023 – Setback – Elevator Requirements 3-9-2023 

572-1 Ordinances 2023 - Setback – Elevator Requirements 2-1-2023 

- Page 81 -Item #10.



File Attachments for Item:

11. First Reading 2023-10 Sec 2-010 Change of Setback Definition to Allow for Elevators

- Page 82 -Item #11.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-10 

ENTITLED: 

SETBACK DEFINITION 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, TO AMEND THE DEFINITION 

OF “SETBACK” IN ORDER TO EXEMPT FROM SETBACK 

REQUIREMENTS THE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF 

ELEVATORS FOR ACCESS TO PORTIONS OF A RESIDENTIAL 

PROPERTY 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, (the “City”) is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the 

Constitution of the State of Georgia to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and 

improve the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, is the Mayor and Council thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to adopt ordinances under its 

police and home rule powers; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the hardship requirement is not well-suited to the circumstances 

for a variance in instances where hardships may exist to occupants of a residence 

where access is needed but difficult to obtain to higher floors; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in the Land Development Code, Article 2, Definitions, Section 

2-010, the section concerning the definition of “Setback” should be revised to correct 

a typographical error, which has apparently developed over various printings; and 

 

 WHEREAS, an exemption is appropriate to remove elevator and shafts from 

the setback requirements in residential construction upon approval of the building 

official to the extent necessary to accommodate standard elevator construction; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby ordained by the governing authority of the 

City of Tybee Island that the Code of Ordinances will be amended so as revise the 

definition of “Setback” as follows: 

 

 

 

- Page 83 -Item #11.



 

SECTION 1 

 

Land Development Code, Article 2, Definitions, Section 2-010: 

Setback means the minimum horizontal distance between the front, rear, or 

side lot lines and the existing or proposed edges of the structure.  The term “required 

setback” means a line beyond which a building is not permitted to extend under the 

provisions set forth in this Land Development Code establishing minimum depth 

and width of yards.  Eaves not exceeding 24 inches are exempt from setback 

requirements.  Eaves in excess of 24 inches are not exempt from setback 

requirements to the extent they exceed 24 inches.  On existing structures one elevator 

facility and elevator shaft is exempt from side and rear setback requirements upon 

approval of the building official to the extent necessary in order to accommodate the 

installation and maintenance of an elevator. 

 

SECTION 2 

 

 If any section, clause, sentence or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid 

or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in 

no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  It is hereby 

declared as the intent of the City of Tybee Island Mayor and Council that this ordinance 

would have been adopted had such invalid or unconstitutional portion not been 

included herein. 

 

SECTION 3 

 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly 

repealed.   

 

SECTION 4 

 

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the 

provisions of this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code 

of Ordinances, City of Tybee Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may 

be renumbered to accomplish such intention. 

 

SECTION 5 

  

This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council 

pursuant to The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

  

- Page 84 -Item #11.



 
 

 This Ordinance shall become effective on _____ day of ______________, 

2023. 

 
ADOPTED THIS       DAY OF                    , 2023. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

                                                         

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING:   

SECOND READING:   

ENACTED:     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
572-1 Ordinances 2023 – Setback – Elevator Requirements 3-9-2023 

572-1 Ordinances 2023 - Setback – Elevator Requirements 2-1-2023 

- Page 85 -Item #11.



File Attachments for Item:

12. First Reading 2023-11 Sec _____ To allow for STR Permits in the R-1, R-1B and R-2 Districts

for Historic Homes that have been moved or Historic Restorations

- Page 86 -Item #12.



ORIGINAL Z-2 in WORD 

Revised 9-28-22 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-04 

ENTITLED: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF 

TYBEE ISLAND GEORGIA, SO AS TO REVISE PERMISSIBLE USES IN 

RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS SPECIFICALLY R-1, R-1-B AND R-2 SO AS TO 

CLARIFY THE SAME AND TO RECOGNIZE EXISTING AND ONGOING 

PROPERLY PERMITTED  SHORT-TERM RENTALS OF PROPERTIES IN SUCH 

ZONES BUT TO RECOGNIZE OR ADDRESS ANY PROPERTY CURRENTLY 

OPERATED AS A SHORT-TERM RENTAL PROPERTY IN SUCH ZONES, AND 

CONSIDER WHETHER SUCH  USES SHALL BE AUTHORIZED TO CONTINUE 

SUBJECT TO THE TERMS CONTAINED HEREIN AND TO FURTHER AMEND THE 

CODE SO AS TO CLARIFY THE TERMS THEREOF BY WAY OF APPROPRIATE 

DEFINITIONS, TO PROVIDE FOR STANDARDS BY WHICH PREVIOUSLY 

OPERATED LOCATIONS AND NOW TO BE POTENTIALLY NON-CONFORMING 

USES THAT MAY BE DISCONTINUED, ABANDONED AND NO LONGER  BECOME  

SHORT-TERM RENTAL PROPERTIES, AS DEFINED HEREIN AND TO CREATE 

REVIEW PROCEDURES RELATED TO ANY DISPUTES AS TO THE 

DISCONTINUANCE OF SUCH USES AND TO REPEAL CONFLICTING 

PROVISIONS, TO ESTABLISH AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES. 

 

 

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is 

authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia to 

adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of the 

citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is 

the Mayor and Council thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to revise zoning definitions and adopt 

ordinances under its police and home rule powers; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Tybee Island has conducted numerous public hearings, surveys, 

focus group sessions, stakeholder conference calls and other means of gauging public opinion over 

a period of years, all on the subject of rentals for under 30 days.  While these activities have been 

held covering all zoning areas on Tybee, this ordinance addresses rental activity within the R-1, 

R-1-B and R-2 areas only; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the community has a limited number of housing units contained within these 

three residential zones and is seeking to protect and maintain the quantity and diversity of housing 

options for the general public in accordance with the Tybee Island master plan.  The character of 

the island’s residential community is an important feature for residents and for any visitor on the 

- Page 87 -Item #12.



island.  The existing tourist trade is very dependent upon this diversity and on the unique character 

currently found in these zones; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Tybee Island has demonstrated that the usage of this limited 

residential housing stock has become increasingly dominated by rentals for less than thirty days, 

and in many cases, high turnover rentals with stays of less than five days.  These units are also 

increasingly operated by absent owners, agents, investment firms and other real estate operations 

with no connection to the Tybee Island community, as demonstrated during the many sessions for 

public input.  This increase has been verified by third party software purchased by the City with 

the intent to identify and monitor these Short-Term Rentals.  The methods and results of this 

software have been made extensively public and have been thoroughly examined; and  

 

 WHEREAS, additionally, while anecdotal evidence demonstrates that behavior by this 

transient, rental population has improved significantly over the last few years, this has not been 

achieved without significant dedication of resources by the City of Tybee Island well as significant 

cooperation from local owner/operators, including, but not limited to, the creation of strict 

residential noise ordinances, sign ordinances, a dedicated complaint hotline, occupancy 

restrictions, and an entire dedicated enforcement department enforcing ordinances through 

citations.  These efforts demonstrate the need for continued regulation of this expanding short term 

rental industry within the residential zones; and 

 

WHEREAS, cities must from time to time update existing zoning definitions to keep pace 

with changes in technology, population trends and land usages.  The City of Tybee Island has 

determined that the increase in online reservation systems and other peer to peer technology 

breakthroughs has substantially altered the face of the tourism industry and this plays a significant 

role in changing the character of neighborhoods within these residential zones; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has conducted a carrying capacity study that addresses the impact of 

density and consequences upon the City’s infrastructure and which calls for restrictions beyond 

those previously imposed upon certain uses, including Short-Term Rentals; and  

 

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby ordained by the governing authority of the City of Tybee 

Island that the Code of Ordinances will be amended so as to provide as follows: 

 

  

- Page 88 -Item #12.



SECTION 1 – PURPOSE AND INTENT 

 

 The purpose of this ordinance is to clarify the definitions and uses for certain residential 

zoning districts.   Section 4-050(A)(B) and (C) of Article 4 of the Land Development Code shall 

be amended so as to include the following sections for all buildings and structures located within 

zoning districts R-1, R-1-B and R-2.    Except as set forth herein, no residence, structure or building 

within zones R-1, R-1-B and R-2, shall be operated as a Short-Term Rental or leased or rented or 

held available for rental for less than thirty days. Existing and ongoing properly permitted Short-

Term Rentals which have been operated within the City in zones R-1, R-1-B and R-2 prior to the 

effective date hereof shall not be a use as of right, but rather, such use will be a nonconforming 

use hereafter, except for owner occupied locations as authorized below or in other sections of the 

Code of Ordinances.    

 

  

- Page 89 -Item #12.



SECTION 2 – DEFINITIONS 

 

The following words and phrases, as used in this article, shall have the following meanings:  

Authorized agent means the owner's agent or the owner's designee who is normally available 

and authorized to respond to any issues arising from a short-term rental unit within two hours and 

who is authorized to receive written notice on behalf of the owner.  

Cap means the maximum number of properties that may be licensed for Short-Term rental 

use in a given zoning district which may be later defined or established with a restricted zoning 

designation.  The cap may be calculated as a percentage of the total number of developed dwelling 

units and developable lots within a zoning district or, alternately, as a flat number, not a percentage.  

Once a zoning district has met its cap, a waiting list or other means of determining eligibility for a 

permit may be established for properties which seek to obtain a short-term vacation rental permit. 

Nonconforming use means the use of any land, building, or structure which does not conform 

with currently applicable use regulations, but which complied with use regulations in effect at the 

time the use was established.  

Short-term rental (STR) property means an accommodation for guests where, in exchange for 

compensation, a residential dwelling unit is provided for lodging for a period of time less than 30 

consecutive days.  Such use may or may not include an on-site manager.  For the purposes of this 

definition, a residential dwelling shall include all housing types.  This is also identified as “STR”.  

This shall exclude bed and breakfast accommodations as they are currently defined by the City of 

Tybee’s land development code.  However, bed and breakfast establishments are required to have 

occupational tax certificates, and to pay taxes and fees as required by law or ordinance. 

Sublet rentals is a property which is leased from its owner on a long-term basis (30 days or 

longer) but then made available by the lessee for short term rental or occupancy to a different party 

and shall be considered a short-term rental and both lessor and lessee are subject to ordinances 

regulating short term rentals. 

 

  

- Page 90 -Item #12.



SECTION 3 – NOTICE OF AND ABANDONMENT OF NONCONFORMING USE 

 

 If a property holding a Short-Term Rental permit in zoning districts R-1, R-1-B and R-2 

fails to conduct short term rentals (rentals of less than 30 days each), at least 90 days of rental at 

full market value within the preceding 12-month period, it shall be presumed that such short-term 

rental use has been abandoned and therefore such use shall be unauthorized.  It is the owner or 

rental operator’s burden to establish the rentals.  The existence of rentals shall be proven by the 

applicable tax returns filed by the owner for that location.  In the event tax returns or other 

verifiable tax documentation are not available due to the rental occurring, or allegedly occurring, 

through a marketplace innkeeper or an online booking service, (such as Airbnb or similar 

providers), the owner may establish rentals through other documentation including rental records 

to the City’s satisfaction.  No new permit or renewal of a permit shall be granted if an owner or 

rental operator fails to make this showing of rentals.  Any new owner seeking a permit is 

responsible to demonstrate the prior property owner’s rental history. 

 

Any previously operated Short-Term Rental within the R-1, R-1-B and R-2 zoning districts 

which is determined abandoned will no longer be allowed to operate as a Short-Term Rental.  

 

 Any property holding an STR permit is exempt from the above requirement to establish 

the short-term rental history for any period where the property is subject to a written lease for a 

long-term rental.  “Long term rental” as used herein means a bona fide written lease agreement for 

a period of 30 days or more. 

 

  

- Page 91 -Item #12.



SECTION 4 – ALLOWANCES 

 

 In locations other than properties zoned R-1, R-1B or R-2, notwithstanding any other 

provisions in the Code of Ordinances, a Short-Term Rental use is allowable in any zoning districts 

as long as the Short-Term Rental location and the owners, agents or representatives for such 

location are in full compliance with all provisions of the City’s then current Short-Term Rental 

Ordinance currently codified at 34-260, et seq. including but not limited to all requirements 

regarding the payment of taxes, compliance with the Good Neighbor Policy, enforcement of the 

occupancy limits, compliance with noise and other regulations and such property has avoided 

citations for violating the Disorderly House Ordinance.   

 

Any structure on a property that contains multiple STR units must have a permit for each 

separate unit.  In zones R-1, R-1B and R-2,   if a property identified by a single parcel identification 

number per official tax records, has more than one structure on it that contains an STR unit, only 

one structure is eligible to apply for a permit.   

 

  

- Page 92 -Item #12.



SECTION 5 – CAPS IN CERTAIN ZONING DISTRICTS 

 

 For purposes of this section, a restricted zoning designation category or cap shall be any 

zoning district in which an ordinance exists limiting the number of authorized Short-Term Rental 

units in that particular district.  In the event a cap on Short-Term Rental units exists for a certain 

zoning district and a permitted unit in that district is thereafter disqualified for a rental permit, that 

unit’s permit shall be void.   No new location or unit will be issued a Short-Term Rental permit to 

operate as an STR in any restricted zoning designation district which has already issued permits 

equaling the cap.  Exceptions to this prohibition of issuing new permits over any cap may be 

allowed as set forth by ordinance.  The City may establish a waiting list or other means of 

determining eligibility for a permit for locations in a restricted zoning designation district as 

necessary. 

 

  

- Page 93 -Item #12.



SECTION 6 – NEW PERMITS PROHIBITED 

 

No new permits are allowable in R-1, R-1-B, and R-2 zones except as otherwise provided 

herein. 

 

  

- Page 94 -Item #12.



4892-9814-4027.1 

SECTION 7 

 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed. 

 

 This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

the code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

 

 This Ordinance shall become effective on __________ day of _____________, 2022. 

 

 ADOPTED THIS _____ DAY OF ______________, 2022. 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

       MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING: _______________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Original Z-2 in Word – Main – Revised 9-28-2022 
Original Z-2 in Word – Main – Revised 8-15-1022  

Original Z-2 in Word – Main – Revised 8-11-2022 

Amended STVR Ordinance W-O Hardship – 5-31-2022 – By Section 

- Page 95 -Item #12.



File Attachments for Item:

13. First Reading 2023-12 Sec 3-_____ To allow for an Exception to the STR Abandonment 

Clause in Cases of Certain Calamities

- Page 96 -Item #13.



Z-2 – Section 3 Amended 

Abandoned-Nonconforming Use 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-_____ 

ENTITLED: 

EXCEPTION TO RENTAL REQUIREMENTS FOR CERTAIN CALAMATIES AND 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF 

TYBEE ISLAND GEORGIA, SO AS TO AMEND NOTICE OF AN ABANDONMENT 

AND NONCONFORMING USE, PREVIOUSLY SECTION 3 TO ORDINANCE NO. 

2022-04 (Z-2) SO AS PROVIDE FOR RELIEF IN CERTAIN INSTANCES OF OR FROM 

THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE 90 DAY PROVISION DUE TO CERTAIN 

CALAMATIES OR FORCES OF NATURE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO 

PANDEMICS AND/OR PHYSICAL DAMAGES TO A STRUCTURE AND, TO 

PROVIDE FOR PROCEDURES FOR ADDRESSING REQUESTS FOR SUCH RELIEF 

AND TO CONFIRM THE EFFECT DATE AND ADOPTION OF SECTION 3, NOTICE 

OF ABANDONMENT AND NONCONFORMING USE, TO REPEAL CONFLICTING 

ORDINANCES OR PROVISIONS AND TO INSURE CONFORMITY AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia 

(hereinafter the “City”), is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution 

of the State of Georgia to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, 

safety, and welfare of the citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is 

the Mayor and Council thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to revise a zoning ordinance under its police 

and home rule powers; and 

 

WHEREAS, following numerous public hearings, meetings, and update shops, conference 

calls, and focus group sessions, conducted in order to address Short-Term Rentals in R-1, R-1-B 

and R-2 areas; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City previously addressed and adopted ordinances revising the Short-

Term Rental code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City adopted certain zoning ordinances addressing Short-Term Rentals 

and finds a need to revise Section 3 of  Ordinance No. 2022-04; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the provisions of Section 3 of Ordinance No. 2022-04, as previously adopted, 

has among other things, a requirement of at least 90 days of rental at full market value within the 

preceding 12-month period and a presumption that the use has been abandoned and becomes 

unauthorized if such rentals are not established; and 

 

- Page 97 -Item #13.



 WHEREAS, the City wishes to revise the same so as to provide a procedure for relief from 

the 90-day requirement in the event the inability to rent is shown to be a result of damages to the 

property resulting from fire, hurricane or storm damage, and/or due to situations such as spread of 

disease, such as the pandemic experienced in recent years; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby ordained by the governing authority of the City of Tybee 

Island that the Code of Ordinances be amended so as to revise Section 3 of Ordinance No. 2022-4 

as follows: 

 

SECTION 1, AMENDMENT TO SECTION 3 OF ORDINANCE2022-4, SECTION 3: 

 

SECTION 3 – NOTICE OF AND ABANDONMENT OF NONCONFORMING USE 

 

 If a property holding a Short-Term Rental permit in zoning districts R-1, R-1-B and R-2 

fails to conduct short term rentals (rentals of less than 30 days each), at least 90 days of rental at 

full market value within the preceding 12-month period, it shall be presumed that such short-term 

rental use has been abandoned and therefore such use shall be unauthorized.  It is the owner or 

rental operator’s burden to establish the rentals.  The existence of rentals shall be proven by the 

applicable tax returns filed by the owner for that location.  In the event tax returns or other 

verifiable tax documentation are not available due to the rental occurring, or allegedly occurring, 

through a marketplace innkeeper or an online booking service, (such as Airbnb or similar 

providers), the owner may establish rentals through other documentation including rental records 

to the City’s satisfaction.  No new permit or renewal of a permit shall be granted if an owner or 

rental operator fails to make this showing of rentals.  Any new owner seeking a permit is 

responsible to demonstrate the prior property owner’s rental history. 

 

Any previously operated Short-Term Rental within the R-1, R-1-B and R-2 zoning districts 

which is determined abandoned will no longer be allowed to operate as a Short-Term Rental.  

 

 Any property holding an STR permit is exempt from the above requirement to establish 

the short-term rental history for any period where the property is subject to a written lease for a 

long-term rental.  “Long term rental” as used herein means a bona fide written lease agreement for 

a period of 30 days or more. 

 

 Further, and notwithstanding the provisions above, property owners, managers or agents 

thereof may petition the Mayor and Council for relief from the 90-day requirement by 

demonstrating that due to damage to the property from fire, hurricane or other storm, and/or due 

to the unexpected spread of disease, such as the recent pandemic, the property was not available 

or appropriate for rent or there was no ability to rent during a period making compliance 

unachievable as a practical  matter, relief may be granted if the Mayor and Council determines that 

the circumstances shown to exist were of such an extent, duration and/or nature that rentals would 

be substantially impaired for a period of time not less than 45 days. 

 

 

 

 

- Page 98 -Item #13.



 

SECTION  2 

 

If any section, subsection, clause, or provision of this ordinance shall be held to be invalid or 

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect any other 

section, subsection, clause, provision or portion of this ordinance which is not invalid or 

unconstitutional.  Where the provisions of this ordinance are in conflict with other ordinances, the 

most restrictive provision shall be enforced. 

 

SECTION 3 

 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed. 

 

SECTION 4 

 

It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances, City of Tybee 

Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

 

SECTION 5 

 

 This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

the code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

 

 This ordinance has previously been determined to be effective as of May 1, 2023.  That 

determination was prior to this amendment.   

 

 ADOPTED THIS _____ DAY OF ______________, 2023. 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

       MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING: ________________ 

SECOND READING: _____________ 

ENACTED: _____________________ 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Z-2 – Section 3 Amended Abandoned-Nonconforming Use 1-4-2023  

- Page 99 -Item #13.



File Attachments for Item:

14. Appendices - Staff Reports  and Planning Commission votes for Public Hearings

- Page 100 -Item #14.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Amendment outlining the process to appeal a zoning action or subdivision or other
purposes

Vote on hearing

#6-TEXT AMENDMENT.pdf

- Page 101 -Item #14.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1870988/_6-TEXT_AMENDMENT.pdf


- Page 102 -Item #14.



- Page 103 -Item #14.



- Page 104 -Item #14.



- Page 105 -Item #14.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Amendment revising the required number of public hearings in order to obtain a
permit in accordance with the zoning procedures law.

Vote on hearing

#7-TEXT AMENDMENT.pdf

- Page 106 -Item #14.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1871006/_7-TEXT_AMENDMENT.pdf


- Page 107 -Item #14.



- Page 108 -Item #14.



- Page 109 -Item #14.



- Page 110 -Item #14.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Amendment to create exception to STR abandonment clause in cases of certain
calamities.

Vote on hearing

#12-TEXT AMENDMENT.pdf

- Page 111 -Item #14.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1871127/_12-TEXT_AMENDMENT.pdf


- Page 112 -Item #14.



- Page 113 -Item #14.



- Page 114 -Item #14.



- Page 115 -Item #14.



- Page 116 -Item #14.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Amendment outlining the requirements to rezone land from single family to multi
family.

Vote on hearing

#5-TEXT AMENDMENT.pdf

- Page 117 -Item #14.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1870983/_5-TEXT_AMENDMENT.pdf


- Page 118 -Item #14.



- Page 119 -Item #14.



- Page 120 -Item #14.



- Page 121 -Item #14.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Amendment to allow elevators in the setback of existing elevated homes.

Vote on hearing

#8-TEXT AMENDMENT.pdf

- Page 122 -Item #14.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1871022/_8-TEXT_AMENDMENT.pdf


- Page 123 -Item #14.



- Page 124 -Item #14.



- Page 125 -Item #14.



- Page 126 -Item #14.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Expansion of notification from neighboring properties to properties within a 200
foot radius

Vote on hearing

#4-TEXT AMENDMENT.pdf

- Page 127 -Item #14.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1870966/_4-TEXT_AMENDMENT.pdf


- Page 128 -Item #14.



- Page 129 -Item #14.



- Page 130 -Item #14.



- Page 131 -Item #14.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Amendment to change setback definition to include elevators

Vote on hearing

#9-TEXT AMENDMENT.pdf

- Page 132 -Item #14.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1871039/_9-TEXT_AMENDMENT.pdf


- Page 133 -Item #14.



- Page 134 -Item #14.



- Page 135 -Item #14.



- Page 136 -Item #14.



- Page 137 -Item #14.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Amendment to add effective date to previously approved ordinance regarding
STR.

Vote on hearing

#11-TEXT AMENDMENT.pdf

- Page 138 -Item #14.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1871120/_11-TEXT_AMENDMENT.pdf


- Page 139 -Item #14.



- Page 140 -Item #14.



- Page 141 -Item #14.



- Page 142 -Item #14.



- Page 143 -Item #14.



- Page 144 -Item #14.



- Page 145 -Item #14.



- Page 146 -Item #14.



- Page 147 -Item #14.



- Page 148 -Item #14.



- Page 149 -Item #14.



File Attachments for Item:

15. Agenda Request: Elisurf's Coffee & Bagel Bar dba The Surfing Goat:

Add liquor by the drink to existing alcohol license: Beer/Wine/Sunday Sales License

15B Tybrisa St

- Page 150 -Item #15.



- Page 151 -Item #15.



- Page 152 -Item #15.



- Page 153 -Item #15.



- Page 154 -Item #15.



File Attachments for Item:

16. Visit Tybee Info Hut Agreement

- Page 155 -Item #16.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Visit Tybee provides staff for the Information Hut on Tybrisa and Strand Avenue.
This contract authorizes Visit Tybee to open for the season beginning May 18,
2023.

Approval of the 2023 Information Hut Agreement between the City of Tybee Island
and Visit Tybee.

2023 Info Hut Use Agreement COTI_DA-MS and VT.pdf

- Page 156 -Item #16.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1880090/2023_Info_Hut_Use_Agreement_COTI_DA-MS_and_VT.pdf


 

PARTIES: City of Tybee Island;  

Visit Tybee, a division of the Savannah Area  

Chamber of Commerce 
 

SERVICE: Tybee Island Information (Info) Hut Partnership 
 

TERM: May 18, 2023 to October 8, 2023  

 

______________________ _______    ______________________ _______

   

Shirley Sessions, Mayor  Date     Joseph Marinelli, President Date 

City of Tybee Island       Visit Tybee 

 

* Agreement contingent upon availability of staffing by Visit Tybee 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement, entered into this______day of________, 2023 serves to be representative of a partnership between the 

City of Tybee Island (City) and Visit Tybee (DMO), a division of the Savannah Area Chamber of Commerce, for 

services at the Info Hut.   

WITNESSETH 

In consideration of the mutual understanding contained herein, the Parties hereby agree to the following for the 2023 

spring and summer season: 

1. The DMO will be responsible for: 

a. Providing staffing (hiring, training and managing) during the 2023 spring and summer season. 

i. Staff coverage (if sufficiently secured) will be approximately 11am – 5pm Thursday thru 

Sunday (this includes Wednesday July 5th and Monday September 4th.  

ii. Staff will consist of part-time staff operating on a shift-work schedule. 

iii. If sufficient staffing is not secured, Visit Tybee will notify the City prior to May 18. 

iv. If there is absence of Visit Tybee Info Hut Staff during agreed season of use, Visit Tybee will 

notify the City that the Info Hut will be closed. 

b. Providing general liability insurance for Info Hut staff. 

c. Providing visitor information to the public specific to Tybee Island, local businesses and events, during 

hours of operation. 

d. Providing a monthly e-report to the city’s Development Authority/Main Street staff person regarding 

estimated number of people served, a breakdown of which states people were from, and top five asked 

questions (as time permits).  

2. The City will be responsible for: 

a. Ensuring the exterior and interior (including air conditioning unit and refrigerator) of the Info Hut is 

appropriately maintained. 

b. Providing information for posting at the Info Hut via the Development Authority/Main Street Program. 

i. information will include answers to frequently asked questions. 

c. Providing electricity to the Info Hut as available.   

d. Posting contact information at the Info Hut for the Visit Tybee staff and public. 

e. Providing space for the informational map (provided in 2016) of Tybee Island to be posted at the Info 

Hut.   

f. Providing seasonal complementary parking passes for Info Hut staff. 

i. tag registration information will be required to be provided prior to May 27. 

g. Providing one parking space near the Info Hut, which will be designated by a sign, during times of Info 

Hut staff coverage (availability not guaranteed). 
 

Signatures provided below by involved Parties constitutes mutual acceptance of this Agreement*. 

- Page 157 -Item #16.



File Attachments for Item:

17. Approve contract proposal for Audit Services.  Management recommends Clifton Larson 

Allen LLP to perform FY23 Audit of City Financial Statements

- Page 158 -Item #17.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

The City is required to have an annual audit.  Management recommends
CliftonLarsonAllenLLP to perform FY23 audit of City financial statements.

Approve contract proposal for audit services 

Audit Proposal.pdf

- Page 159 -Item #17.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1877282/Audit_Proposal.pdf


- Page 160 -Item #17.



- Page 161 -Item #17.



- Page 162 -Item #17.



- Page 163 -Item #17.



- Page 164 -Item #17.



- Page 165 -Item #17.



- Page 166 -Item #17.



- Page 167 -Item #17.



- Page 168 -Item #17.



- Page 169 -Item #17.



- Page 170 -Item #17.



- Page 171 -Item #17.



- Page 172 -Item #17.



- Page 173 -Item #17.



- Page 174 -Item #17.



- Page 175 -Item #17.



- Page 176 -Item #17.



- Page 177 -Item #17.



- Page 178 -Item #17.



- Page 179 -Item #17.



File Attachments for Item:

18. Sgt Sims, out of state travel to complete his Drug Recognition Expert certification. He will 

need to travel to Jacksonville, Fl on April 10 and return on April 16. Hotels expenses for travel 

are covered for this trip through the certification program. Sgt. Sims will need to travel in his 

TIPD patrol car requiring gas and per diem for meals. He was originally scheduled to attend this

class in November 2023, but a spot opened this month.

- Page 180 -Item #18.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: April 13
 

 
 
 
 
 

Sgt Sims, out of state travel to complete his Drug Recognition Expert certification.  He will
need to travel to Jacksonville, Fl on April 10 and return on April 16.  Hotels expenses for travel
are covered for this trip through the certification program.  Sgt. Sims will need to travel in his
TIPD patrol car requiring gas and per diem for meals. He was originally scheduled to attend
this class in November 2023, but a spot opened this month.  

Consider the approval of out of state travel

- Page 181 -Item #18.



File Attachments for Item:

19. Second Reading:  2023-20, Sec 46-34, Discrimination and Harassment Prevention

- Page 182 -Item #19.



- Page 183 -Item #19.



- Page 184 -Item #19.



- Page 185 -Item #19.



- Page 186 -Item #19.



- Page 187 -Item #19.



- Page 188 -Item #19.



- Page 189 -Item #19.



- Page 190 -Item #19.


	Top
	Item #1.	Minutes, March 23, 2023
	add to minutes
	20230323Minutes

	Item #2.	Pat Leiby and Julia Pearce, Tybee MLK's Pilgrimage to Ghana connecting the Door of No Return to Tybee's Lazaretto
	scan

	Item #3.	Applicant is requesting special review of proposed retaining wall at landward toe of dune
	Applicant is requesting special review of proposed retaining wall at landward toe of dune

	Item #4.	Applicant requests permission to have a second temporary dwelling on the property until home is elevated. Applicant is part of 2nd batch of the HMGP grant.
	Applicant requests permission to have a second temporary dwelling on the property until home is elevated.  Applicant is part of 

	Item #5.	Special Review, Sec 3-100, Beach, dune or vegetation disturbance/crossover maintenance and construction.  Jason Bell petitioner
	Applicant is requesting special review of proposed retaining wall at landward toe of dune

	Item #6.	First Reading, 2023-05, Sec 5-050 (C):  Expanded Notification to Owners or Occupants
	2023-05

	Item #7.	First Reading 2023-06:  Sec 5-050, Single Family to Multifamily Rezoning
	2023-06

	Item #8.	First Reading 2023-07:  Sec 5-060 Appeal of Zoning Decision
	2023-07

	Item #9.	First Reading 2023-08 Sec 5-060 Required Number of Public Hearings
	2023-08

	Item #10.	First Reading 2023-09 Sec 3-090 To allow an Elevator to Encroach into the Side or Rear Setback
	2023-09

	Item #11.	First Reading 2023-10 Sec 2-010 Change of Setback Definition to Allow for Elevators
	2023-10

	Item #12.	First Reading 2023-11 Sec _____ To allow for STR Permits in the R-1, RF-1B and R-2 Districts for Historic Homes that have been moved or Historic Restorations
	Original Z-2 in Word - Main - Clean Copy 9-29-22 REV

	Item #13.	First Reading 2023-12 Sec 3-_____ To allow for an Exception to the STR Abandonment Clause in Cases of Certain Calamities
	2023-12

	Item #14.	Appendices - Staff Reports  and Planning Commission votes for Public Hearings
	Amendment outlining the process to appeal a zoning action or subdivision or other purposes
	Amendment revising the required number of public hearings in order to obtain a permit in accordance with the zoning procedures l
	Amendment to create exception to STR abondonment clause in cases of certain calamities
	Amendment outlining the requirements to rezone land from single family to multi family
	Amendment to allow elevators in the setback of existing elevated homes.
	Expansion of notification from neighboring properties to properties within a 200 foot radius
	Amendment to change setback definition to include elevators
	Amendment to add effective date to previously approved ordinance regarding STR

	Item #15.	Agenda Request: Elisurf's Coffee & Bagel Bar dba The Surfing Goat: Add liquor by the drink to existing Beer/Wine/Sunday Sales License
	Agenda Request-Elisurfs-Add Liquor to existing license

	Item #16.	Visit Tybee Info Hut Agreement
	2023 Info Hut Agreement

	Item #17.	Approve contract proposal for Audit Services.  Management recommends Clifton Larson Allen LLP to perform FY23 Audit of City Financial Statements
	Audit Services

	Item #18.	Out-of-State Travel: SGT Sims, Travel to complete his Drug Recognition Expert Certification, Jacksonville, GL, April 10 - 16, 2023.
	Police Department Out of State Travel

	Item #19.	Second Reading:  2023-20, Sec 46-34, Discrimination and Harassment Prevention
	Section 46-34 Sexual Harrassment Policy Ord No 2023-20

	Bottom

